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Dear Environmental Health (Licensing), 

Newbury Rugby Football Club Limited, Monks Lane, Newbury, Berkshire  
RG14 7RW 

“Prevention of Public Nuisance” Review under the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises 
Licences and Clubs Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005 

We wish to support the Council’s review of the Rugby Club’s licence in view of  
the fact that the Club has been unable to achieve the objective of Preventing Public 
Nuisance in managing and operating the Club premises. 

As Tydehams residents of 26 years, we made no objection when the Club applied  
to set up its site on Monks Lane to train for and play games of rugby football.  
This we expected to involve some acceptable levels of noise – or “sound pollution” –  
through spectator support and of “light pollution” through artificial lighting. 

Beyond Rugby Football 

However, a number of things have occurred since the premises were first opened  
for these purposes that have caused us to have to complain both to the Council’s 
Environmental Health Department and to the Club itself, on grounds of serious 
nuisance for reasons beyond the mere training for and playing of the game of rugby. 

We have on several occasions had cause to contact the Council because we have been 
kept awake late into the night by unacceptable volumes of music (especially bass 
notes), when the premises have been hired out to private hirers for parties. This has 
caused us to need to close our windows on hot summer nights, and yet the noise has 
still come through despite well-insulated walls and high-specification double-glazing. 

We had been given to understand by the Club’s management that the conditions for 
hiring out the premises for such functions included that music be played at reasonable 
levels of volume and that the building’s windows be kept shut during such hirings. 
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On a recent three-day weekend of events, there was intolerably loud music 
accompanying throughout the day and late into the evening for the entire weekend. 
Even sitting in rooms facing away from the club the bass sounds were so loud they 
reverberated throughout and could be clearly heard even with a proms concert played 
at high volume on the television I contacted your offices at that time to complain again. 

It appears that, recently, the Club has sought to extend the hours during which it can 
provide “entertainment, refreshment and alcohol” on the premises. We can only 
assume that, as these hours are extended to embrace not only Saturdays but all days of 
the week, the sound pollution can only potentially become worse and lead to increased 
nuisance to local residents, ourselves included. Because of the lie of the land between 
the Clubhouse and residential areas beyond Monks Lane, the noise becomes amplified 
and directed away from the Clubhouse and towards our own property in ways that 
might not be immediately obvious. 

The prospect of extended licensing hours, not only within the day but also across the 
week, added to the fact that the Club’s management has not always ensured that 
organisations hiring the premises have kept their side of the bargain with respect of 
noise nuisance can only lead to an increase in our need to contact the Environmental 
Health (Licensing) Department.   

We submit these observations for the Department’s consideration and look forward 
to learning that, all things considered, the Department will consider that the Club’s 
failure to achieve the “Prevention of Public Nuisance” objective in managing and 
operating their premises should render the requested licensing variation both 
inappropriate and unsuitable in the circumstances.  

Yours sincerely,     

Michael McKenzie             Barbara McKenzie 


